MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IRM Energy Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 315t March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the inf_ormation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndia’n Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {'Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31** March, 2022, and profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section
143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Other Relevant Information contained
therein, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
_express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is rna_icerially inconsistent with the -
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Management's Responmbuluty for the Standalone Financial Staternents

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. ' '

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professmna! judgment and mamtam
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: '

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. '

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companig
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Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a gaing
concern. If we conclude that a ' ' '
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. '

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company
to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in {i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defitien;_:ies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. ' ' :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complled with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where apphcable, related
safeguards.

'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, w_e give in the “Annexure A” 3
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f}

g

h)
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash FIc;w Statement and statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Iri our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statermnents comply with Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; :

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respéct to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer t0 our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

i, The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long term derivative contract;

ii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor:-Education_ and
Protection Fund by the Company. :

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) byF the company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {“Ultimate Beneﬁciaries"} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any peréons'or'entities,
“including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based. on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and

- appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations given under (a} and (b} above, contain any
material mis-statement.

The final dividend paid by the company during the year in respect of the same
declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the act to the

extent it applies to payment of dividend.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

\fv\/vw'\-"t:
- i

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner.

Membefship No.:128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 19/05/2022

UDIN: 22128670AMNZV06532
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wannexure — A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report 6f even date to the members of
IRM Energy Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that: '

1. {a) i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

ii) The Company has maintained propef records showing full particular of intangible
assets.

(b} Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢} According to the to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed
/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the 'Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land
that have been taken on lease and disclosed under property, plant and equipment in the
financial statements, the lease agreements are duly executed in the name of the
Company, where the Company is lessee in the agreement,

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, the company has not revaiued any of its property, plant
and equipment {including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by '
 us and based on the examination, no proceedings have beeﬁ initiated dufing the year or
are pending against the Company as at 31* March, 2022 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder. - '

2. {a)  The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and coverage and procedure for
such verification is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its business. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.
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(b}  As Disclosed in note 14 to the standalone financial statements, the company has been
sanctioned with working capital limit in excess of five crore in aggregate from bank during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the company. The guarterly
statements filed by the company are materially in agreement with the books of account

~ of the Company, except detailed as hereunder: ' '

(Amt in Million)
CGuarter Particular Value as | Value as | Amount Reason for
Ended | per Backs | per of Discrepancy
of quarterly Difference
- . Account statement :

September | [nventory - 1507 15.07 - | - Difference is on
2021 : account of
. Trade 162,33 166.99 {4.66) accounting entry
Receivable _ ' passed

Trade Payabl 90.73 76.19 14.55 subsequently to
race Payable ' ) - fitking of stock
Net Difference 9.98 statement
December | Inventory 15.08 14.92 “0.16 | - Subsequent to
2021 o C year end, Company
Trade 219.65 220.03 (0.38) | has submitted the
Receivable revised statement
with the banks and
Trade Payable 141.98 12671 | - 15.28 | revised balances
are in agreement
Net Difference 15.06 | with the books of
' accounts.

3. (a) During the year the company has made investments and also provided loans or advances
in the nature of loans and also provided guarantee to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships and other parties details are as follows:

(Amount in Million}
Particular Loans | Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year : j

- loint Venture o 74904 -
- Qther ' _ ' '
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date .
- Joint Venture _ ' . 7490 - 507
- Other :
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
the grant of the above-mentioned loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to

the Company’s interest,
(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us,. schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated and repayment of principal is not yet due.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of hooks of a'ccounts, there is no overdue loans for more than 90 days at the
balance sheet date.

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the loans or advances
in the nature of loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

{fi  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment to Promoters and related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013,

4, According to the information and explanations given to us; the Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities. ' '

5.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable,' accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the order is not applicable to the company. '

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1} of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records wrch a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

7. {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value added Tax, Cess
and any other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.
Moreover, as at March 31, 2022, there are no such undisputed dues payable for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)'According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no s"qch dues as at .
March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited/paid on account of any dispute.

8.  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act; 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to.
the Company. ' ' ' '

9. (a) According to the information and explanations given to ué and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not defauited in repayment of
loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or due to
debenture holders during the year.
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{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company is not declared as_wi'llful defaulter by
any bank of financial institution or other landers. '

(c} According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans are applied for the
purpose for which the loans are obtained, '

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
‘examination of the books of account, we report that the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for the long-term purpose

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures.

(f}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

10. ({a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer {including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the reguirement to report on clause 3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. ' '

11. {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
~ year. _ '
{b} No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
"the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
" Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. ' '

12, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not ap;jlicable to the
Company. '
13.  According to the information and explanations given to us and _bé_\sed on our examination o'f

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details. of such

accounting standard.
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

(a) According to information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. '

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi}{a}, {b), {c) and (d} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause {xviii}) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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20. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) and
there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule
VIl to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable
for the year. '

for MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

(\’\A/\/\N‘f""{
Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner
Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 19/05/2022
UDIN: 22128670AMNZV0O6532
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report — March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRM Energy Limited (“the
company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAl].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

As per Section 143(3)(i) our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment
of the material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error..

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial contro!l over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
contro! over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. "

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. '

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CQ,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date : 19/05/2022

UDIN: UDIN: 22128670AMNZV06532

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7™ Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

[Unless othanwise staled, ol amounls e in Milkon induan Rupees]

Particutars NoteNo. | AsatMarch3l .o ot march 31, 201
2022
ASSETS
Mon-cutrent assels
d) Property. ptant and equipment a.l 2,848.19 2,307.99
b| Copilal work-in-progress 3.2 52284 197.02
c] Intangibles assals 33 26.54 26.48
d} Right to Use Assets 34 129.43 71.47
& inlangibles under Development 35 1.92 1.93
Il Financial assels
{i} Investments 44 11482 44.00
{iil Locins SA 77.42 -
fil) Other financict assets 58 181.75 42.23
gl Olner nor-current assels b 2831 25,19
h) Cument Tox Asset (Met)
3,591.23 2,806.32
Current assets
a) Invenlories 7 1714 8.05
b| Finonchal assels -
{il Investments 4B 10278 1376
li} Trade receivables 8 23712 111.84
it} Cash and cash equivatents SA 591.4% 257.52
[} Bank balonces other thon (i) above ) 405.56 15674
vl Loans - -
vi) Other finansial assets [\] 26.50 &.0¢
c} Other cumeni assels 1 44,17 23.40
1,414.78 57742
Tolal Assets| 5,406.01 3.383.74
EGVITY AND LIABILITIES j
Equity
a) Equity share capital 12 29370 289 99
bl Othar equity 13 2,001.47 BED.67
Tolol eqguity 229517 1,178.48
Liobiilies
Mon-current labilltles
a} Financial Liabilities
1} Borrowings 144 1.867.60 1.581 82
fiil Trode poyables - -
fii} Oher lincnclal liobillies 16 303.45 193.0%
) Provisions 174 235 7.00
¢] Defermed tax Saliles (Hel 7 14712 . #3.58
2,327.52 LE75.4%
Current liabilitles
a} Financial Ligbilities
] Borrowings 148 158.32 51.69
il Trade peyabtes : 15
- fotal cutstanding dues of micro enterpises and small enlerprises 243 11.2)
- lotal outstanding dues of credilors olher Than micro enterprises 248,50 8237
and small enterprises :
liil} Other financial kabilltles 14 23800 147.45
b ] Frovisions 178 0.41 ol
¢| Other current liobillles 18 41.41 2972
di Current tax Fabliities [Mel} 84.25 -
783.32 329.57
Total Equity and Liokilitles 5,405.01 3.383.74
See accompanying notes 1o the finoncial statemenls
43 per oul report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co, , For and on behall of #he Board
Charlered Accounianls
Firm Regisircdlon Mot 1084625W (X,f\ \
' -
- Wﬂllll‘________,
Harsh Keliiwal @ ’ Vinod Jain
Parner hoirmbin Direclor
Membership Number : 128570 K
Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022 } R )
aran Kayshal Horshal Anjaria
CED RO

Ahmedabad, Dated 191k May, 2022

-

snn(ﬁ Jain|

Company 3aecrelary




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

SEPARATE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

|Url=ss olhersise stated, all amounts are in Milion Indlan Rupees)

For the year ending | Forthe year ending
Particulars Nele No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
REVENUE :
Revenue from Operations 20 5,461.42 2,118.09
Other Non-opetating Income 21 30.50 7.33
5.491.92 2,125.42
EXPENSES ;
Purchases of stock-in-trade of natural gas 22 2,492.27 770.86
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and 23 {9.94) {0.20)
Stock-in-Trade
Excise: Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas 389.98 222.44
Employee Benefils Expense 24 71.58 41.11
Finance Casts 25 220,77 158.55
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 26 150.37 120.00
Other Expenses 27 653.27 351.79
3,948.28 1,664,558
Profit belare Tax 1,523.64 460,87
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 28 334.50 82.89
- Deferred Tax 28 53.54 12.72
Profit tor the year 1,135.60 351.26
Chther Cqmprehensive income
Ji. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset . {0.15) 018
b. Income tax related to this ftems -
' {0.15) 0.18
Total comprehensive income 1,135.75 351.08
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) ) 3
o Baisic 38,92 12.47
Diluted 38,92 12.47

As per ourrepert of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registration No: 106625W

Harsh Kejriwal

Partner

Memizership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : 1%th May, 2022

See accompanying notes io the financial stalements

For and on behaif of the Board

o
e

Choirman

ek

Karon Kaushal
CEO

M

Ahmedabad, Doted : 19th May, 2022

A ,”r"rf@

45%

Vlnodjuin
Director

Harshal Anjaria
CFO

Company Secrelary




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless otherwise stated. ol amounts are in Milloh Indian Rupees)

Particulars For the period ending
Mar- 2022 Mar- 2021
A. Cash flow from operating getivitles
Net profft before tax and exirgordinary items 1,523.64 460,70
Adjustment for:
Interest Income [29.29) (7.03)
Interest and Finance Charges 22077 158.55
Provision for Income {11.83) {1.83)
Depreciation and Amorfisation expense 150.37 120.00
Operating profit before working capifal changes 1.853.65 730.3¢9
{increase)/Decrease in Other Assets {413.78) {292.01)
{increase)/Decrease in Inventories ¢.11} {1.30)
{increase) /Decrease in Trode Receivable {115.24) [63.06)
Increqse/[Decraase) in Trade Payables 150.33 28.50
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 130.08 63.28
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liobilities 2.61 124.25
Cash generated from operation 1,596.53 590.26
Direct taxes poid (incl TDS) {218.37) {#1.47]
Cash flow before extraordinary items 1,380,146 498.79
Net cash from operaling activities 1s]] 1,380.14 498.7%
B. Cosh flow from investing aclivifies
Interest Income 28.75 6.46
Invesiment {132.84) {76.27)
Inter Company Loan [77.42) -
Furchase of Fixed Assels {incl. capital work in progress) {1,008.48) [464.39)
Net cash used in investing activities {b) (1.197.18} {534.19)
C. Cash fiow from financing activities
Froceeds from equity shares issued 1573 43.55
Proceeds from Bonks Borrowings 375.49 172.10
Interes! and Finance Cost {193.54) {136.67}
Lease cost {11,590 (%.33)
Stamp duty on issue of shares - (113
Dividend {35.00) -
Proceeds from preference shares issued - 34.14
Net cash trom finoncing activities {l 150.9% 102,467
Net increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [a+b+c) 33397 &67.27
Cash and cash equivalents — opening balance 257.52 190,25
Cash and cash equivalerts — closing balance 591.49 257.52
Reconciliation ot cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Cash and cash eguivalents of the end of the year comprises
{a) Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 59117 : 257.27
) Cash on hand 0.32 0.25
591.49 257.52

Motes:

Changes

{i) The cash Flow statement reflects the cash flows pertaining to continuing operations.
{ii) The cash Flow staternent has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in IND AS - 7 Cash Flow Stotement”

{ii) Disclosure of changes in liabiliies arsing from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash




As ot March 31, 2022

Change in fair

Membership Number ; 128470
Ahmedabad, Doted : 19th May, 2022

L

Karan Kaushal
CEO

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Cosh Flows value/faccruals As at March 31, 2022
Non Cumrent Bomowings 1,581.82 28578 - 1,847.60
Current maiurity of Non-Curent borrowings 51.69 56.64 - 108.34
Cumrent Borrowings - 49.98 - 42.98
Total 1.633.51 392.40 - 2,025.%1
As at March 31, 2021

. Change in fair

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 Cash Flows value/aceruals As at March 31, 2021
Non Cumrent Bomowings 1,449.25 132.57 - 1,581.82
Current rnaturity of Non-Current borowings - 51.69 - 51.49
Current Borowings - - - T
Total 1.449.25 184.24 - 1.433.51
See accomponying notes to the financial statements
A r eport of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regisiration No: 106625W

ol X2 ““] il

(- - /

Harsh Kejriwal i. Sahu Vinod Juln
Partner Chairrnan Director

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

ariE

Harshal Anjaria
CFO

3

7

hikha tain
Company Secretary
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Limited {formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated on Olst
December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or camry out the business of
storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or incidental o the
laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas Distribution Networks, The
Company was converted info Public Company effective 23« March, 2022, The Compdany is
cumrently supplying hatural gas in Banaskantha District in jhe State of Gujaral, Fatehgarh
Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in the State of
Gujarat as per the authorisation granted by Peiroleun & Natural Gas Regulatory 8oard
(PNGRB]).

The Company was awarded the authorisation for City Gas Distribution in the geographical
areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli Districts in the State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022.

The separate financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {(INR] which is also
Functional Curency of the Company. The financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 19 May, 2022,

2. Basis of Preparation & Measuremeni

The separaie financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from
lime to time. The significant accouniing policies that are used in the preparation of these
financial staterients are summarised befow:

2.1 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention & on an
accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at fair value as required by .
relevant Ind AS:

+ Financial assets & financial liablifies measured initiclly at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial Instruments);
« Defined bensfit & otherlong-term employee benefits.

2.2 Cumrent vs Non-Curmrent Classification

The Company presents assels & liakilifies in the balance sheel based on current/ non-
current classification,

An asset is freated as curent when it is:

» Expectedtoberedlised orintended to be sold or consumedin normal cperating
cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be redlised within fwelve months afier the reporting period, or

« Caosh or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used o
seftle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporiing period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when:




2.3

It is expected to be settled in hormal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

Ii is due to be sethied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets & liabilities are classified as non-cunent assets & liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisiion of assets for processing & their
realisation in cash & cash equivalents, '

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. I also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or area whete assumplions &
estimates are significant to these financial statements are disclosed below.

The preparafion of Financial Statements in conformity with the Accouniing Standards
generdlly accepted in India requires, the management to make estimates &
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets & liablliies & disclosure of
contingent liabilities as the date of the financial statements & reporfed amounts of
revenues & expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current & future periods.

When preparing the financial statements, management underfakes a number of
judgments’, estimates & assumptions about the recognition & measurement of assets,
liabilities, income & expenses. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies, the following judgments have been made apart from those involving
estimations, which have the mast significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial information. Judgements are based on the information available at the date
of balance sheet, S

(i} Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income faxes, including amount expected 1o be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

fii) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent a
significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset’s expected useful life & the expected residual value at the end
of its life. Management reviews the residual values, useful lives & methods
of depreciation of property, plant & equipment at each reporiing period
end & any revision to these is recognised prospectively in cument & fulure
periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as
well as anficipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

{iii) Employee Benefits: Significant judgmentis are involved in making judgments
about the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary increase, etc. Which
significantly affect the working of the present value of future liabilities on
account of employee benefits by way of defined benefil plans.

{iv) Impgirment _of assets & invesiments: Significant judgment is involved in
determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments, Property,
Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine ils value in use to assess




{v)

(vi)

(vii)

{viii)

whether there is any impairment in its carrying amount as reflected in the
financicils.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be ulilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available
while recognising defered tax assets.

Recodnition & measurement of unbilled gas_sales revenues: In case of
customers where meter reading dates for biling is not matching with
reporling date, the gas sales between last meter reading date & reporting
date has been accrued by the company based on past average sales. The
actual sales revenue may vary compared to accrued unbilled revenue so
included in Sale of natural gas & classified under cumrent financial assets.

Recodnition & measurement of _other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of dn outflow of resources & on past experience &
circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outilow of
resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so provided
& included as liakbility.

Leases: The Company evatuates if an arrangement quadtifies to be a lease
as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Idenfification of a lease reguires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgerment in assessing
the lease term (including onticipated renewals} and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-conceliable period of
a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain 1o exercise that option; and
periods covered by an option to terminale the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not o exercise that option. '

In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certcin to exercise an
option to extend alease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease,
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic

* incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease. or
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease,

The Company revises the lease term if there is o change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate.

2.4 Propery, Plant & Equipment

(i}

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated af cost of acquisition / construction
less accumulated deprecialion, :

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly attributable &
ascertainable, to compleling the project (including pre-operative expenses).
These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant & machinery, cost of laying
of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning & lesting charge, detailed
engineering & interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of such dssets.
The gas distribution networks are treated as commissioned when supply of gas
commences fo the customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and Equipment
is added to its book value only if it increases the future economiic benefifs from
ihe existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All




(i}

(i

other expenses incurred fowards normal repairs and maintenance of the
existing property, plant and Equiprent {including cost of replacing parts) are
charged to profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of Property,
Plant and Equipment for the period of consiruction is added to the cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment,

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators where
applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they meet the
definition provided under Ind AS 14 subject to maleridlity as determined by
the management & followed consistently.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incured on asseis, which are
yet 1o be commissioned & capital inventory, which cornprises stock of capital
items/construction materials ai respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & asceriainable expenditure, incidental & related
to construction incurred during the period of construction on a project, fill it is
commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP) & after
commissioning the same is ransferred / dllocated to the respeclive “Property,
Plant and Equipment”,

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet dafe are classified as capital
advances under other non- current assets.

Depreciation is provided as follow:

« Properly, Plant and Equipment is depreciated over the permissible
useful life specified in Schedule Il pursuant to section 123(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as per ‘Straight ine method™.

The estimated Useful life of Asset is below

Name of Asset Useful life
Building 25 Years
Computer and Laptops 3 Years
ﬂﬁg1ca§r%§§§|;$ery Pipelines and Last 25 Years
Fumiture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office tquiprment 5Years
Vehicles E¥Years
Software 5Years

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the
period for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor
of payment is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such
ROW charges is considered as 10 years.

o The management believes that these useful lives are redlistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by ihe
management al each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of arevision, the unamortised depreciable
amount {remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining useful life.




2.5

2.

(v}

o For the purpose of calculating the depreciafion, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concemned.

» Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acquired /
disposed-off duiing the yeor is provided on pro-rafa basis with
reference to the daie of addition / disposal.

s Depreciation on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addifion,

»  Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with camying amount. These are included in the statement of profit &
loss under Other Expenses/income.

Intangible Assets:

Infangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way {(ROW)
permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of developing soffwcre
for internal use. The Company capitalises software as Intangible Asset where it
is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Cost associated
with maintaining software programmes are recognised as expenses as & when
incured,

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the intangible asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds & the camying amount of the intangible
asset] is charged to revenue in the income stalement when the intangible
asset is derecognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of such transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as af the Balance Sheet date are
ransiated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dote of the Balance Sheet.
Gain/Loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on
setflement/tfransiation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in the Staterment
of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs, in which
case they are capitdlised along with the bomrowing cost.

Revenue recognition

{i)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received orreceivable.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable thot future economic benefits will flow to the
Company & no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration thal will be derived from the sale of goods /services & regarding
its collection. The Company bases its estimates on histarical resulfs, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction & the specifics of
each arrangement,

Sale of Nafurdl Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no  significant  uncertainty exists
regarding the measurability or collectabiiity of the sale consideration. Sales
are biled bi-monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnighity for
commercial & non-commercial customers & fortnightly for industrial customers
as the timing of the fransfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the
individual terms of the sales agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed




2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Natural Gas {CNG) is recognized on sale of gas to consumers from retail
outlets.

The amouni recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty &
exclusive of Sales Tax /Value Added Tax [VAT) & Goods & Service Tax & is nef
of trade discounts or quantiity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the lasi biling cycle to the
8alance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected {owards connection charges from cerfain domestic
customers are "Non-Refundable Charges”. Accordingly, the same are
recognized as revenue as an when the Company receives the amount from
such customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic cusiomers which includes
amount “refundable” in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a
liability under the head “Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet.

(i} interest income is recognised on time proportionate method (on accrual
basis).

(iii) Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when no significant
uncertainty as fo its determination or reclisation exists.

Borrowing Costs

{i) The Company is capitalising borowing costs that are directly aftributable to
the acquisition or consiruction of qudlifying asset up to the date of
commissioning. Qudlifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of fime to gef ready for their intended use or sale,

(ii) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they
are incurred, if any. '

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are
impaired by comparing canying amount of each asset &/ or cash generalfing unit to
the recoverablte amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in
use is determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the
conlinuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas {including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued at
lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost
method.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc) are valued
at lower of cost & net redlizable value. Costis determined on moving weighted average
basis. :

Accounting for Income Taxes

‘Income tax expenses comprises current fax [i.e. amount of tax for the period

determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or credit
freflecting the tax effects of fiming differences between accounting income & taxable
income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised in statement of profit or
loss except tax expenses related to items recognised directly in reserves {inchuding
statement of ofher comprehensive income} which are recognised with the underlying




items.

(i}

(it

The Income Tax expense or credit for the periodis the tax payable on the current
period's jaxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred fax assets & liabilifies attibutable to
temporary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the fax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporiing period i.e. as per
the provisions of the Income Tax Aci, 1961, as amended from time to time.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in fax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interprefation. It
establishes provisions where appropriote on the basis of amounts expected to
be pdid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for current income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance fax paid & income fax provision arising
in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant fax paying units & where the Company
is dble to & intends to settle the asset & liability on a net basis.

Deferred Tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between the tax
bases of the assels & liabilities & their carying amounts in financial statements
at the reporting date. Deferred tax are recognised in respect of deductible
temporary differences being the difference between taxable income &
accounting income that originate in one period & are capable of reversal in
ohe or more subsequent periods., the carnry forward of unused tax losses & the
camy forward of unused tax credits, '

Deferred Income Tax is determined wusing tax rates (& laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacled by the end of the reporling period & are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax licbility is setiled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences &
vnused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
avdilable 1o ulilise those temporary differences & losses,

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right 1o offset cument tax assels & liabilities & when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets & tax liabllities are offset
where the Company has alegally enforceable right to offset & intends either fo
settle on a net basis, or to redlise the assel & setile the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except 1o the extent that it
relates fo items recognised in other comprehensive income or directiy in equity.
In this case, the taxis also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit avdilable including Minimum Alfernative Tax (MAT) under the
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 isrecognised as deferred taxto the exlent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused 1ax credits can be utilised, The said asset is created by way of credit to
the statement of profit & loss & shown under the head deferred tax assef.

The camying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed at eachreporting date
& reduced jo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profii
will be avaiable o dllow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ufilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date & are
recognised to the exient that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will cllow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a inifial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contraci
conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the conlract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company receghizes a righi-
of-use (ROU) asset and a coresponding lease liability for ol lease arrangements
in which il is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less {short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these shori-term and low-value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arangements includes the options to extend or terminate the
lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities inctudes
these options when .“ is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assels are initially recognized that is equal 1o lease liabitities on the initicl
application date, that is amived based on incremental borrowing rate on the
initial application date. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assels are depreciated from the initial application date on a straight-ine
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assed.

ROV assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their camying amounis may not be recoverable.,

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell and the volue-in-use) is determined on an
individuai asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. in such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability s initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of
the future lease payments on the date of initiat application. The lease payments
are discounied using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU assef if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
terminafion option. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

The Company as o lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating
lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership io the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operaling leases. When the Company is an
infermediate Tessor, it accounts for ils interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classiied as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases,
rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
iease.




2.12 Employee Benelils

Licbilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up io the
end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are seltled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet,

(i)

(i)

i

Defined Coniribution Plan;

 Contribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued in

accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory provident
fund authorities (Government administered provident fund scheme). The Group
does not cary any other obligation apart from the monthly contribution.

The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.,

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liabllity is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the end of
each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valugtion by an actuary
appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
penefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benetit plan obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the pltan assets. The
Liabllities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by aciuarial valuaiion,
performed by an independent Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to the market yields at the reporting period
on govemment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation.

The net interest cost in calcutated by applying the discounting rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan assets. Such
cosis are included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of Profit &
Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from expeiience adjustments &
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the period in
which they occur direclly in "other comprehensive income” & are inctuded in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheet.
Re-measurements are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

+ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains
& losses on curtailments & non-routine settlements;
» Net inferest expense orincome.

Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected to be
avaited or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is freated as
long term employee bensfits,
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The Company's liability is actuarally determined by qualified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income in the year in which they arise,

Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the infernal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company operates in a single
segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 108
“Operafing Segmenis® have been disclosed by the Company under note no 38,

Provisions, Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provision is recognised when the Cormpany has a present obligation as o result of past
evenis & it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation & in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure for
contingent liakility is made when there is a possible obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outilow of resources is remote, no
provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
staterment,

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted fo
reflect the correct management estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before taxis adjusted
for the effects of fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferals or accruals of past or
accruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or payments & ifem of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing & financing activities of the Cormpany are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance sheet
date] occuring after the balance sheei date are recognized in the financial
statements. Material non adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions that arose
subsequent to the balance sheet date) occuning after the balance sheet date that
represents material change & commitment affecting the financial position are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Exceptional hems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense,
pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves
ihe understanding of the performance of the Company, such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item & accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying
to the financial statements.

Dividends

Final Dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the date of approval of the same by
Shareholders & interim dividend are recorded s liakility on the date on declaration by
Company's board of Directors,

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit orloss [excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year atfibutable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares ouisiong during the year is adjusted for events
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such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, shares split & reserve share splits
[consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a comesponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earmnings per share, the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for
the year athibutable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one antity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also
include derivalive contracts such as foreign exchange forward confracts, cross
currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, curency options and embedded
derivatives in the host contract.

a. Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus fransaction costs
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of finoncial
assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

i. Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequénily medsured at either
amortized cost or fair value depending on the company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the confractual cash flow charactenstics of
the financial assets,

il, Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business modet in which an asset is
held at o porifolio Jevel because this best reftects the way the business is
managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest :

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. 'interest' is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a period, for other basic tending risks, costs (e.g. licuidity risk
and administrative costs), and profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principd
and interest, the company considers the contraciual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains o contractual term
that coutd change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition, '

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured ot amertised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- It is held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows.
- the coniractual terms of the financial asset represents contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.




After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculaied by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impaiment are recognised in the profit
or loss,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows,
- the confractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

On inifial recognition, the Company makes an imevocable election on an
instrument-by-insirument basis fo present the sulbseguent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income pertaining o investments in equity instruments,
other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are
measured ai fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumutative
gain orloss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposc of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FYTPL, unless the Company
imevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
volue in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments
which are not held for trading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is

measured at amortised cost or at fair value fhrough other comprehensive

income on initial recognition. The fransaction costs direcily attribuiable to the
acquisifion of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in siatement of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointty controlled enfities and associates are measured
at cost less impairment as per the ind AS 27 -Separate Financial Statements,

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews ifs camying value of investments carried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. if the recoverable amount is less than its carmying amount, the
irpairment foss is accounted for,

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset jor, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the
company’s balance sheet) when:

- - The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay fo a third party under a ‘pass-through’
amangement; and either (a) the company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company




has neither transferred nor retained subsianticlly all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

when the company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially alk of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the company confinues to recognize the
transferred asset o the extent of the company’s conlinuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Confinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum armount of consideration that the company could be required to

repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset [or the camying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecagnised) and the sum of (i) the considerationreceived (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and {i) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in the OClis recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assets
caried at amortised cost and FYCCI debi instruments on a forward-looking
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk,

with regard to frade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach
as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Insiruments, which requires expected
ifetime losses o be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credii losses are measured af an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or al an amount eqgual to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial ligbilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially ot fair value and in the case of
amortised cost, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After the initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses




are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisafion process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisifion and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amorisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabllities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial iabiities held
for trading and financial iabilities designated upeon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incured for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Finandial liabiities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in the Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses atirbutable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.
These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to the P&L. However, the
Company may iransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All the other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in fhe statement of profit or
loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilitles

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual abligations
are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Modilications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are substanticily different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the confractual rights 1o cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed 1o have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

¥ the cash flows of ihe modified asset camied ai amorfised cost are not
substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of
ihe financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross camying
amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting
the gross carying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. if such
modification is camied out because of financial difficulties of the borower, then
the gain or loss is presented together with impainment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income. The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in case
of transaction with shareholders.

Financial liabllities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value [net
of transaction costs incumed). Difference between the fair value and the
transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / tiability based on the
underlying reason for the difference,

subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amorfised cost using the
effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
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the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liabilify with modified
terms is recognised in profit or loss, The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in
case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference Shares
considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further modified the
estimates of future cash flows.

2.21 Fair Value Measurements

These financial stalements are prepared wnder the historical cost convention, except
certain financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
financial instruments) as per relevant applicable Ing AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer afiability
in an ordetly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the' most advantageous market for
the asset or liahility. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liablity is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liabilily, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest, A fair value meoswrement of a non-
financial asset takes info account a market participant's ability to generaie economic
benefits by using the asset in ifs highest & best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest & best use.

The Company uses valugtion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances &
tor which sufficient data are avgilable to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of uncbservable inputs. Al assets &
licbilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Llevel | —Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets
or liabilities o '

o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest levet input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets & fiabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occured between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole] at the end of each reporting
period.

{All amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

As af 31 March 2022 Financialinshumens by potegery (eanving Fair value hierorchy (foir value)
FvpL | Fvocy | Amortised Totel Level | Level Level 3 Total

Financict assets . '

Investrment 102.78 - 114.82 217.60 - 217.60 217.60
Loans - - 77.42 77.42 - - 77.42 77.42
Trade receivables - 22712 22712 227.12 22712
Cash & cash equivalents - - 591.49 591.49 - 591.49 591.49
Other Bank Balances - - 405.56 405.54 - 403,56 405.56
Other financiat assets - - 208.25 208.25 - 20B.25 208.25
Total financial assets 102.78 1624.64 1.727.44 1,727 .44 1,727.44




As ot 31 March 2022

Financial instruments by category (carying

Fair value hierarchy (fair volue)

amount)
FvpL | Bvoct | Amorised Total Level | Level Level 3 Total
Finongi iif
Borrowings - - 2,025.91 202591 - - 202591 2,025.91
Trade payables - - 25093 250.93 - - 250.93 250.93
Other financial kabilities - - 531.46 531.46 - - 531.46 531.46
Totat financial liabillfies - - 2,808.30 2,808.30 - - 2,808.30 2,808.30

{All amounts are in Million Indign Rupees)

As at 31 March 2021

Financidl instruments by category (camying

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

amount)
FvpL | pvocy | Amerised Total level | Llevel | \overs Total
cost 1 2

nclaf assets
Investment 13.78 - 44.01 77.77 - - 77.77 7177
Loans - - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 111.86 111.86 - - 111,86 111.86
Cash & cash equivalents - - 257.52 257.52 - - 257.52 257.52
Other Bank Balances - - 156.74 156.74 - - 156.74 156,74
Other financial assetfs - - 48.33 48.33 - - 48.33 48.33
Total financiol assets 13.76 - 638.46 652,22 - - 652,22 852,22
Financlal Nabillt
Borowings - - 1.633.51 1,633.51 - - 1.633.51 1.633.51
Trade payables - - 100.60 100.60 - - 100.60 100.60
Other financial abilities - - 340.54 340.54 - - 340.54 340,54
Total financial llabilities . - 207445 2,074.65 - . 2,074.45 2,074.65

2.22 The previous year numbers havé been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless otherwise
~stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. tems reflecting as 0.00 denoles value
less than Rs. 50,000.
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

ying noles fo the Separoie F lal Stal \}

Ui olneraie slaled, ol amaunds gre i Lahan rdion Rupees)

Nate Ho. [— At oix;zh 3. As ul;\:;l;dl ELR
4 Inveshmants
AA|Hon Cumenl
My Ungualed Ir I il I Equiiky Ins ds of Joint Condrol Entily [medsured at omorlized cetl]
- 17.21,344 Equity $hares of Rs. 10 eoch fully pold of Farm Gas Private limiled [31st March, 20212 10,4%,600) 170 10.50
- 10,570,800 Equity Shores of Rs. 10 each lully pald of Verwko Polymers Privale limited (313t March, 20212 10.50.800] 10,57 10.51
- 50,000 Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each lully paid of Mi- Hon_C\.rﬂnders Privale limiled (3151 barch, 2021 43 0.50 -
fi| Unquoled nvestmenl in Prafarsnce Shares of Jaint Central Entlly jmeasored af amodisad cos]
44 50000 10L30% Cumulalive Radeamoble Prefersnce Shares of Bs. 10 moch fully paid of Farm Gos Frivole limiled 40.50 1590
[31st March, 2021 15.70,000]
_ 4210200 19.50% Cumulaliva Redeemalle Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each hully paid of wenuka Polymers Privale Limiled 200 o710
3151 Mareh, 20211 27.10.200)
11482 401
4b| Currae]
Invesimenl In Unlls of Mutuol Fund [measured al Markel Volue)
Baroda Business Cycle Fund 6348 -
£9.94,535 ynlts [March 21, 2021: Hil]
Union Flad Cop Fund 479 -
144,033 urils forch 31, 2021; Ml
Urilen Focused Fund LT -
2376461 Unils {Morch 31, 2021 : NIl
Uriion HyiosTd Equity Fuad 15.49 2.8
12,492,937 untls IMarch 31, 2021: 8.65.647]
Unign Largs & Midcap Fund 412 -
257001 urals fporch 31, 2021 Ml
tnlon Medum Purailon Fund 478 4.58
4 48,477 Unils [March 31, 2021: +.4B.477)
1021 13,74
5 |[financlol assets Han-cuirend
5a| loons
Loans Io Reloted Potlles 7490 -
Ermployee Lotn 252 -
¥7.42 -
58| Olher inanclal assels
Sgeurily Derrysl
To Ralaled Parlies [Unsscured, considerad good] 044 0.44
To Oikvars [Unsecured, considered goad) 1505 12.6%
Less: Allowance for bad and doublil - -
Eark Bolances
Balanss i FOR Accounls* TEb 24 wil
“The Company has isved Bank Guaronlees in faveur of PMGRE during nermal course ol business, Such Bank Guarantees are issued
by Ihe Banks agais! Margin Money kept wilh bank in ke fomn of Foed Deposits cardng maturily of more thon 12 monlhs,
181.75 42,23
& CHher non- cunent assels
Capital advonces [Unsecured, considered good)] 3207 358
Unamerlised expenteas - Bamowing Cosl under AR L7.01 18.71
Advanca poymenl of income tax [nel o provision) - 31.84
Prepaid Expernses 3923 41.06
3831 5. 1%
7 Inventorles jmeaswed ot lower of cost or et redlisakies value)
Halual Gos 1207 2.08
Spaves and Comumables 514 591
CHG Fils - .08
1794 B.O5
B Cunend linonclol gssels : Trads recelvables
seeured, corsidared good [ecued opalnsd security depesils)) 147,05 7493
Ursecured. considerad good (Others) B0.07 36,73
22712 111.88
Trade kecelvables Ageing Schadule as on 21.03-2022
Oulskanding lor [ollowing petlods fram due dale of Faymen?
Paricvlars Unbifled Nol Dve  |Lass Ihan| & months - 12 Years 2.3 Yoo sore fhan 3 yoars Tedal
_ - _ smonths| | ywa
tﬁ;‘gﬁ‘gﬁ“ rasaivobles - 11,53 17895 3628 000 004 . 22712
) ‘Undispuled Trade Receivables - which ; _ ; _ : ; ; .
have signilicand increase in credit rsk
[i] 'Undisputed Trade Recehvables - credit . _ ; ; ; ; ; .
irnpaired
jiv] ‘Thiputed Trade Recslvobles- consdared . . _ ; . . .
good
v} ‘Disputed Trade Recsivables—which hava } ; _ ; N . ;
sigrilizant increase in credil risk
i} 'Dlispuled Trads Racelvobles — credlt _ } N : ; ; .
mpatred




IRM El

NERGY LIMITED

ying noles Yo e Sep

JUrten oibemise slaled, ail amourds gre in M%an Indion Rupee:)

Hole No. Particulars As d';[:;';h n, As dm:ch 3.
Trade Recalvables Agelng Schedule a3 on 31.02.3021
Oulstanding lor lollowing periods fom due date of Paymen?
Parfculars Unbilled Hol Dve  [res than|é monihs - 1.2 fears 2.3 Years More than 3 years Tolcl
L months| 1 ysar
cmﬁ;s'p;ﬁ:fio'or;ode receiyoatijng - 565 B34 2181 0.7 0 |; _ - H1.84
{5} 'Undisputed Trods Receivables - which ; ; : : ; _ .
hiava tignilicanl ncraase In credit risk
hii] ‘Undispuled Trade Recahables - credl . ; ; ; . ; .
impaired
[lv] ‘Disputed Trads Receivakles- conldered
goad ; B B T B :
v} ‘Disputed Trode Recetvables —which heva : . ; . . ; .
sigrilficant increose in cradil sk
fvil 'Dlspuled Trade Recekables - credit ; R . _ R R R
impaired
¥ Current financial assels -
¢A| Cosh ond cash «quivalenls
fa} Bolonce with bonks
Bolanca i Curenl Accounls 1.7 257.27
bl Cazh on hand 032 0,25
48| Bank balances olhe lhan above
[a] Margin Money depasts under lien againgt D5RA, Bank Guaranlee ondfor $tand By Lelter of Credll (SBLC)® 45.56 15674
“The Company has issued Bank Guoranisas and Slond-By Lelter of Credl[$BLC] la various Govl. agancles ond alher Suppliers
during rermol course of business. Such Bank Guarontees and S8LC have been issued agairsl Margin Monay kept wilh bark n The
form ol Fixed Deposils comying maturity ol batween 3 monihs lo 12 months Furlher, as per Ihe finoncing document, the Company
has olsa craated Detl Service Rearve Accownl ot Fived Deposil with fhe Bank,
97.06 414.28
16 |Cument Ananclal osseds : Olhers
Inswrance Cloim Pecelvable 2.1¥ -
Interas] Receivable 212 003
Depaslt - Curend 12.00 570
Dividend Racelvable ?.3% -
Impretl armount with Employess .54 0.6
2550 5.10
11 |dher cunent assels
Advance to Suppliers [Unsecwrad. Considerad good) e 24 1041
Prepaoid Expenss 2753 12.99
1?7 23.40
12 [$hare capllal
Avthotised :
5,00.00,00 Equily Shaves of Bs, [D/- Each 500.00 500,00
4,00.00,000 Preferenca Shares of Bs 104- Euch 400.0% 400.00
. i 00,00 00,00
lsed, Subseiibed and Fully Pald-up Equily Sharec:
Equily shates
2.93,69.477 |os al Karch 31, 2021 2.89.92.471]. Equity Shores al B 10f- eoch ) 293,70 87 .99
Prederence shaies
10%, Redeemable Prelerenca Shares - -
3.49,59.432 [os at March 31, 202): 31584,971] shares of Rs. 104- each
29370 269.7¢
A |pelaits of Shareholders hotding more than 5% of ovlskanding Shares Is as under,
|l|§£lﬂ'£.§|lﬂlﬂ
Hame of Shareholder Ho. ol shares %% ol Holding
As al 31.03.2022
(Cadila Phammaceulicals Lid 1.49.78.535 51.00%
Or. Resiv 1. Modi [Trustee of [Ria Trust] 55.80.238 19.00%
Enerech Dislibution Monogemant Pyl Lid, B, 70,124 29.52%
A al 31.03.2021
Cadila Pharmaceuticols Lig L4B#1.004 £1.35%,
Dx. Rojiv 1, Mod| [Truslee of IRM Trgsl} 55.47.628 19.13%
Enartech Disirbulion stanggement Pyl Lid. B5.60.837 20.52%|
BH on Cul = P dres
Hame of Shorehotder Ho. of shires % of Holding
As ot 3103202
Cadio Phamacaulicals Lid 3.49.9%.422 100,00%|
As at 31.03.2021
Coadie Phamoceulicals Lid 34959432 100.00%,
3 Getails and Chenge in lomolars’ holding dwing the yeail
[} Equily Sharey
% changs In
Hame ol Sharcholdar Ho. ol shares Fhelding holding during Ihe
yeou
As al 31.03.2022
Cadia Pharmaceulicals Lid |49 7B.535 5).00%: -0.35%|
Dr. Ropw | Moch [frmtee of IRM Trush) 55.80,236 19.00% -0,13%
A ol 31.03.2021
‘Codila Phavmaceulicals Lid 1.43.91.004 51 35%, 035%
O, Ragjiv |, Mock [Trusles of 178 Trusl] 55, 47,628 17.13% 0.13%




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

ying noles ta the Separale Fi 2al tlal i

Urlass atherse sloled, ol amerds are i Wdlign Indan Ruseed)

As al March 31, As of March 31,
Hole No. Pariculary 2022 2021
C Tari Hepns:
(}|Equily Shoes:
of ¥eling riahitx
The company has only one class of equily shares having par volue of Rs. 10 per share, Exquity shareholders cre nlillad ta one vole pershare held,
b|Divigend:
the dividand provided, it any, by boord of direcleors is subject lo appreval of shargholdars in Annuagl Genaral Meeting, sxcepl, in case of inferdim dividend. In the evend af
liquidalinn of Ine comparny, Iha equity shareholdar shall be enlilled la proparionale shave of Iheir holding in Ihe ouels remaining afler distripulion of all preferendich armaunls,
(| kwd. e Non- C five Pret Shares {AP5):
o|fed fign ler
The: prafarence shores camles redemplion pertod of 10 yeors Irom the dole of ismlance,
b|Cividend;
The dividend provided, if any, by lboard of direclor: is subject lo appeovol of sharaholders in annual General Meeting, sxcepl.in case of inferim dividend. In jhe evenl of
liquidatian of Ihe company. Ihe equity sharehsoldar sholl be entilled 1o proporlionale share of Ihek holding in Ihe gssels remaining ofler distripulon ol all prefereniicl amounls,
[+] ki Hlakon of shares oulstanding ol The beginning and at the end of lhe reporfing period
’wwum
Podiculars Number of $Shares
Shares culstanding gs al 01.04.2020 2.71,25.000
Agid: Shares issued during |he period 2020-21 1874471
Shares culslanding os af 31.02.2621 28997471
add: Shoret istuad during Ihe pedod 2021-22 3.70.204
Shares oulyanding al 31.03.2022 293,869,677
Hon Cumul demoble o Shuras och
Padicubars Humbet of Shares
IShares oulstanding af the beginring of Ihe pedod 3.4%.79.432
Adel. Shares ssued dunng Ihe pedod -
Shares culstonding of e 2nd ol the peried 3,49.9%.432
' AsolMarch 31, | s of March 31,
, Parficulars 2022 2021
13 |Reserve: and surplus
A, Statement ol profil ond loss

Qpening bolonse £35.05 254.80

Add: Trorsler from stalement ol profit and less 1.135.50 35124

Less: Corpateta Dividendt : . 135.00)

Less: Nlems reutad lhrough SOCIE - -

Claslng balonce ) 1.736.65 436.04
8. Equity Companent of Freference Shares
i} CCCPS (Oplicnolly C: fible C Pral Shares}
Opsning - . : 0.2 0.23
Equity Component of QCCPS - -
Closing Bolance 0.23 Dz
i) Hon € Reed. bis P = Shares
Qpening 211,82 173.24
Equily Cempenen! of nor-cumulative redeemable prelerance thares - A7.58
\Clesng Balance 210.82 21082
[Cloting balance [i+ii) 211.05 21105
C. Hems ol OCI - Remeasurament of the nel definad beneld fabllityfassel, net of Jox eflect
Cpernng 0.67) 0.49]
Remeanaswament of The nel defined benefil llakdity/assel. net of lax slfact* 015 {0.18]
Closing bolance {0.52) (0871
~Ramegiurement ol dalined benelil plans reprasents acturddl galn ond lesses and retums on pPlon assels
[exchuding inteles] income).
D, Sacuiilies Premivm

Opening Balonce 42.25 18.57

Addilion during ihe year 1204 24.81

Less. $tamp dulby expenta on shores - 11.13)

Cloting Balance 54.2% 4225
Tolal Reserves . 2.001.47 BBB. &9
14 |Hon- cunent Anancial labiilies : Bowewings
14AlHon- Curran]
secwed (canied ol omerdized cos)}

Fupee Tarn loons Irgm banks 167510 141475

vehicle Laon 8.72 -
Unsecured
Preleience shoias

llabdity companen! 10% Non cumulalive Redesmoble Preference Shores of Rs. 10/- aoch 183,78 167.0/7

1.867.40 1.501.42
14B|Cumeni
Secumed {cowied of szed cotl)h
Rupee Term loons rgm banks§

Curran talwilies of Rupee Taim Loon from Barks 10857 51.6%
working Copitol Laan frgn Bonks 4998 -
“ehicle Loan 137 -

156.32 51.49
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IRM ENMERGY LIMITED
A Ang nolas ko Ihe Separole Financial Stak k
e alherais 3lated, ol amoul: ara v dkon ingian Bupded)
As o March 31, Ax ol Maich 31,
Natle No. Parlculors 7023 2021
(L] | loa
From Ronks
Padiculars Taimns of Repoymend and Inleres rale

Rupee Term loon: Fer project of City Gos Dislibution of Banoskantho and Falehgorh Sohio Dlsirlcl {cansodum of
ks Union Bonk of Indlo and Bonk of Barada)

A0 quotety nslaliments starled rom July 2021 and Interasl
rale ronges fram | yaor MCLR +0.25% 1o ) Yeor MCLR+1LISE

Rupes Term lot: Fer projec) of City Gas Distribulion of Div and Gir Semnalh Cistric! [consorium of banks: Bank of
Boroda . Unlen Bank of Indig ond Punjab Habonol Bonk]

MCLR+EDR

151 Tranche: 20 qualety ktlallments from ApiH, 2023
2nd Tranche: 20 quolerdy instalimanls irom Apel, 2027 and
Inlerest rala ranges from 1 year MCLR +0.25% 10 1 Yaor

Wehicle boans

0607

Repayable in 4 Foulvolanl Menthly inslallmeni: and interes!
rala ronges from 7.30% lo 7.40% brked fo 3 monlh EBLR +

1 I securiby gr | lgons are oz UA: H
il The Rupee Term Loan s secured os below:
st Charge on movable and Immevable assels fbolh prasanl ond Julure) reloling le the specific projecls o pan passw basis
~Exclusiva charge on DSRA creoled for the specific prejecl.
Firsl chorgs on the Trust and Retenlisn Account ol The specllic prejec] on pari passu bagls.
. -Firsl charge on cument owets incl, cesh flows. recsivables. elc]. balh prasent and lulwe, of the spacille projecls on pod pass
] The Working Capiled | secured Qs below:

{li} ‘T vehicle Loans are tecured by Chorge on Vehlels

{iv} There Is no defaul In repaymenl of loan ond Interesl thereon as om 31.03.2022

v} The bock value of the fixed aset s on 31.03.2022 charged in lavour af the lenders is Bs, 3777.89 million (incl CWIF) {PrevioUs e
i) For more securily detaits onipank linancing, rafar tote - 34

u bass,

-Second Charge on movoble and immovable asels (both present and iuiura] relaling to The speciic projects on por passu basis.
-First charge on cument assets fincl, cash flows, recatvables. etcl. bolh presant and fulue. of the specllic projech: on pori possu basls

Ry 2768.71 millign)

For lhe pmiled
Patculars Fo;:l;;‘p":::: ;;:]ed ended ;:‘e;lemhnn
Valus of Invenlony
A5 per Books of accounds 1507 15.08
At par detolls submitled 1o Banks| 1507 1492
Duiterance - AT
Trade I
As per Books of accounls) 162,33 219 &5
As per delods submiltad b Barks 16599 220.03
Diflerence” 488} 13381
JIrade Povable
As per Books of accounts 90.73 141 78|
As per delails submified lo Banks 1619 12874
Didlarance* 14.55 15.28

* Subsequent lo year end, Company has submilted Ihe revised stalemanl for all quarlers and all ligures as per revised stalemen) are In agreemenl with the books of gccounly

Curend financlal llobdlities : Trade poyables

and small

Tolal oulslonding dies of micre
Trade poyablas - Others

1] Intwrsst due Ihareon remalning unpaid 1o ony suppller o¢ at he end of the occaunlng veor

fii} The amaount of inlerest paid by e company in lems of seclion 16 of the Micrs, Small 2 Medium Enterprises Devaloprnent Acl,
2006, along wilh The omaunl of the poyment made lo ihe suppher beyond the appolnled Day alapment Acl, 2006. afong wilk the:
omount of Ihe poymen mode to ihe suppller beyond Ihe oppainted day duing the aoooumling yaar

{ivitne amaurd of interesl dua & payoble for The penad of delay inmaking poyment [which have been poid bul beyond the
oppoinied day during the year) bul wilhoul adding the interes! specified under the Micre. Small & Medium Enlerprises Davalopranl
Act, 2004

[v} The amasunt of interes] accryed & remalning unpoid al The end of e accounting yeor

Ivi] The ameounl of furdher interest remaining dus & payoble evenin lhe succeading year. Unlil such date when the interesl dums
abova are aclvally paid la the imall enlerprize, (o lie porpose of disallovonse of o deducliale expendliure under seclion 23 of lhe
Micro, Smaoll & Medium Enlerprises Davatopmenl Act. 2006

Trade Payabties | ficre ond Small enlerprzss 43 1.z
Tetal oulslanding dues of creditors cther lhan micro enterprizes and smuall enlepii

Trade payables - Gos Purchase £ Tronsmission 137 48 48,44

Trade payables - Ralaled carlies o2 0.4

Trade poyables - Olhers 97.80 4091

250.93 100,40
Frade Fayables Agelng Schedvyle as on 31.03.2022
Oubstanding for lollowlng peileds irom due dale of paymen)
Parkculars Nol Due l“;:‘:‘:" W oaa yeans 2.3 yaons More than 3 yeais Tolat
[il MASHAE 243 - - - - 243
) Dbvers 24012 728 0.00 [iX1)] - Hg.50
[ill) Disprstad dures- MSME - - - - - -
fiv] Disputed dues- Olners - - - - - -
Tiade Payables Agelig Schedvle a3 an 31032021
Oullanding for following peiicds lom due date of paymsnl
Tartfculors Hel Cve [1ays fhan 1 Tolak
Year 1-2 years 2-3 yeous More lhan 3 yeors

i} MSME 121 - - - - 2
1) Cihers 8298 5.53 o083 - - 9.9
[ifi) Dlspuled dues- M3ME - - - - - -
liv] Dlspuied dues- Others - - - - . .
Pisclosuie required under micto, small £ medl b lop 3 ac), 2004 {ihe ocl) are o3 fellows:
1§ Principol ameunt remaming unpald to ony supplier o5 ol the end of The accounling year 243 12l

besn idenlified on fhe basis of Inform alion available with the Compary.

Mote- Infermalion a3 required to be diselesed under the Mlcre, Small and Medium Enlerprisa: Development Act. 2006 has been determined 19 [he exlenl weh podlies have




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

yihg nolat ks Ihe Sepoate Financlal Slalement

U= athersiia stoleo. o omaounls oie e Relllon Incion Rupees

Nole No. Porllculars As ul;:;!;h . As u';:::‘h .
14 |Olher financial Hablilies
Non-Cuirend
Cwslamer Security Dapoci 195.24 14308
Lease Lobiilles jrafar dote 42) 10821 2001
303.45 193.09
Cunrenl
Credilors tor Copilal Geods 136.21 11724
Lease Liohillies [reter Hale 42] 8485 6,22
Ofhen poyable B2.94 2399
- 228.00 4745
17 |Provhiom
174] Nen-Cumend
Pravision lor Employes Benefils [refer Hote - 1) 2.35 7.00
.35 7.00
178| Cumend
Proviion for Employee Banaflts [refer Hale - 31] 0.4l .11
0.41 LALl
18 |Cument Nabifies : Olher:
Stalylory duss payable &1.41 29.72
5141 29.72
1%  |Cwefered Tox Liakilities {nat)
Curen Tax Linbiitlas 14712 358
147.42 1358
Porticulaes As ol 01,04 2021 c"“"g:::'""’ e | 4s ol 31.03.2022
Delewead Ty LHabllilies
Deprecialion 10%.52 47.52 179.04
=] 10%.52 &% 52 17304
O«terred Tax Avsals
Provision for Refrement Benelils 1.79 067 244
Leose Lizilily 14,15 1531 29,47
[1=1] 1594 15.58 k1R
Mel Dalerad Tox [Liobililies] fAssals o-b) A58 53.84 147,12
Hote Ho |Pardiculais m;;:;:;:f ;;I:;Ilﬁ hu:'e‘}:e;lll ::;::ng
20 Revenue lom Oparallons
Sole of Gondy
CHG Sules [Gross of Taxes) 2,967.35 1,636,
PHG Soles 26271 45052
Sole of Sarvices
Comecllon Incoms 2067 1354
Dilher Operating Reverues .67 752
5.461.43 " 211809
2 Olhat Non-aperaling liceme
Gan onremeswerman of linancial Assets 1.08 o
Interest Income 29,42 702
3 S0 7.33
22 |Purchases of shock-In-ade ol nofordl gas
HMaturol Gios F.492 27 77086
249227 170.88
23 [Changas in Invenlories of Ratural Gas
Changes In invenloes of linlshed goads, slock In Irade and waik In progress - Hatwal Gos
Invenlory at ihe beginning ol Ihe year 704 157
Less: Inventory of the end of ihe yeor 12.02 206
{9.15) 0. 20
24  |Employns Banafils Expense
Solaries, wages and bonus 4£2.15 3553
Company's coniitullon to pravident & ofher lunds 2.38 159
Leave Encashment and Graltulty [Refer note 31) anz? 302
Slaff weliore experzes 403 0467
71.58 411
25 |Hnonce Coshs
Inlerest Cazl
- Oy Taerm Loan 129.47 10598
- On Working Capital 0.3% 104
- On Freference Sharss 1671 15.59
- On Fingnce Lease Liability [reler Mole 42) 599 480
= Cihars AT .87
Oher Besrenving Cost |at 1.6%
Rank and Olker Finonce Chorges 6054 27.78
220.77 158.55




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanying notes fo the Separale Financial Siatements

|Unless olharwise stated, al amounls are in Kalion indian Fupees)

For the year For the year
Note ending ending
No. |Porficulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 .
26 Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Deprecialion of tangible assets frefer note 3.1} 142.59 107.30
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3.4) 7.78 12,70
150.37 120.00
27 Other Expenses
Advertisement and Marketing Expenses 10.09 433
Businass Promolion Expenses 1.96 2.14
Corporate Soclal Responsibility Expense {refer Note - 37) £.03 3.40
Consumption of Spares and Consumables L% .53
Director's Sitting Fees 278 1.80
Hirg Charges
-Wehicles 237,20 139.97
Insuronce Cost 2,46 4.98
Legol and Frofessional Charges V6.77 10.56
License Faes £3.00 -
Managerial Remuneration 20.79 7.47
Power ang fuel 82.82 53.69
Rent [refer note 42} 4.58 1.79
Repairs and Maintenance
-Buildings 0,28 0.35
-Plant and Mochineries 140,12 7799
-Others 1481 0.21
Stamp Duty Expense 1.24 2.41
Security Expense 4,20 4,43
Tender Fees 13.54 -
Traveling, Lodging and Boarding 915 2.88
Rates and Taxes 0.18 a9
Miscelloneous expenses 21.28 18.1%
$583.27 351.79
Payments to ouditor
For Statutory Audit {Inc) G5T) 1.42 1.27
For GST & Tax Audit {Incl GST)" 0.46 0.31
For Cerlificalion & other reimbursements fincl. GST)* 0.28 019
28 Tax Expense )
Corporaie Tax- Curent 334,50 88.10
Corporate Tax- Previous year - 1.79
Detered Tax {refer Mote - 17] 53,54 19.72
388.04 109.41
284 |Reconciliation of elfective tax rate
Tax using the Company's domeslic tax rate 25177 2517%%
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,523.54 450.87
Tax using Company's Domestic Tax rote 383.50 116,00
Tax effect of adustments in calculating taxable Income
CSR Expenss 1.52 0.86
Depreciation [51.75) {45.23)
Intarast on Current Tax 8.30 -
Tax Expense of eclier years - 1.79
Otheritems {7.06) 156.48
hcome Tax Expense reported into Profit and Loss Current Yeat 334.50 89.89
Corporate Tox - Current 21.95% 19.50%




29.

Financial risk maonagement:

The Companies activities expose it to credif risk, liquidity risk & market risk. This note
explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 1o & how the entity manages the
risk & the related impact in the financial statements. The Companies risk management
is done in close co-ordination with the board of directors & focuses on actively securing
the Companies short, medium & long-ferm cash flows by minimizing the exposure to
voiatile financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed o generate
lasting retums. The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes nor does if write options. The most significant financial risks to
which the Company is exposed are described below:

{i)

(i)

(i

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle
their obligations as agreed. The Company is exposed to credii risk from trade
receivables, bank deposits & other financial assets.

Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence, there
is no significant credit risk on such fixed deposits.

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, & analysis of
historical bad debts & ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set
accordingly.

The Company frades with recognized & credit worthy third parfies. # is the
Companies policy that all customers who wish to frade on credit terms are subject
to credii verfication procedures. In addition, frade receivable balances are
monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Companies exposure {o
bhad debts is not significant.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting daie on an individual basis
for major clients. In addition, alarge number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is
based on exchange losses historical data. Also, the Company does not enter into
sales fransaction with customers having credit 1oss history.

There are no significant credit risks with related parties of the Company. Adequate
expected credit losses are recognized as per the assessments,

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to setile or meei
its obligations on time or at areasonable price. For the Company, liquictity risk crises
from obligations on account of financial liabilifies — borowings, trade payables &
other financial liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of kquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the
cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the
working capital is sufficient to meet its current reguirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position &
maintains adequate source of funding.

Maiurities of financial lighilities:

The tables below analyse the Companies financial liakilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual maturities for all nhon-derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their camrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.




{iv)

(vi)

{All arnounts are in Million Indian Rupees|
As at 313t March, 2022 Upte 1-2| 2-5yrs More
yearl yedars than 5
yrs
Borrowings [other than redeemable 158.31 171.77 51602 996.04
preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - 29.90 153.88
Trade payables 250.93 - - -
Other fingncial liabilities 423.24 20.12 28.57 09.52
TOTAL 832.48 191.8% 574.49 1209.44
GRAND TOTAL 2808.30

All amounts are in Million Indlan Rupees)
As at 313t March, 2021 Upto 1:2| 2-5yrs More
year 1 years than 5
Yrs
Borrowings [other than redeemable 51.69 68.93 397.39 948.44
preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - - 147.07
Trade payables 100.60 - - -
Other financial liabilities 290.53 1.89 6.83 41.28
TOTAL 442.82 70.82 404,22 1,156.79
GRAND TOTAL 2074.45
Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices— such as foreign exchange-
rates, interest rates & equily prices — will affect the Companiesincome or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. : o

Foreiqn exchange risk:

The Company is not direcily exposed to foreign exchange risk as no direct foreigh
cumency transactions are entered into.

Interest Rate Risk:

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inferest rates. The
Companies exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Companies long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Companies investments in fixed deposits are at fixed inferest rates.




The exposure of the Companies borrowing to inferest rate changes at the end of
the reporting period are as foliows:

jAll amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

As at 31+ As at 31
Particulars March, March, 2021
2022
Variable rate instruments
Financial Assets - -
Financial Liobilities 1,842.14 1,466.44
Fixed Rate instruments
Financial Assets 646.73 18585
Financial Liabilities 300.84 223.30
Interest rate variation Change Impact Impact
Scenario-1 (+} 0.50% 921 733
Scenario-2 (-) 0.50% {9.21) (7.33)

30. Capital Management:
The company objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their akility to
continue as a going concem so that they can confinue to provide returns for
shareholders & benefits for other siakeholders, & maintain an optimal structure 1o
reduce the cost of capital.

Net Debt = Total term loan borowings less cash & cash equivalents-including current
investments :

Total 'equity means share capital issued (Equity Shares & Preference Shares) &
accumulated reserves, :

{All amounts are in Million Indion Rupees
As at 319 As at 31

Particulars March, 2022 | March, 2021
Total borrowings {including Liability component of 2.025.91 1.633.51
Redeemable Preference Shares)

Less: cash & cash equivalents & Balance with 1,266.10 45713
Banks

Nef debi 759.82 1,176.38
Total equity 2,295.17 1.178.68
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.23 1.00

Loan Covenants:

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply
any 2 of the following financial covenants failing which penal interest as prescribed in
the facility agreement shall apply. The Financial Covenants shall be fested at the end
of each Fiscal Year based on the certification of the Auditor.




a) Gross DSCR- 1.10
b) Interest Coverage ratio- 1.25
¢} FACR = {Net Property, Planf and Equipment/ Loan Qutstanding)- 1.25

The first testing of financial covenants will be done for the first full operational year post
the commencement of commercial operations of the Project, i.e. based on audited
financials for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2023,

31. Employee Benefits:

fi)

(i)

-Short term employee benefits

Lohg term emplovee benefits

[a] Gratuity {Unfunded):

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendlering the service
are classified as short ferm employee benefits. Benefits such as Salaiies, incentives
2 allowances, short terms compensated absences, etc., & the expected cost of
bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the year in which the employee renders the
related service.

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of
5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of grafuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years

of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Period

Particulors For the year For the year
ended 31+ ended 31+

March, 2022 March, 2021

Table Showing Change in the Present Valve of

| Projected Benetit Obligation:

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 385 213

the Period

Interest Cost 0.27 0.15

Curent Service Cost 1.28 0.21

Past Service Cost - -

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - -

jLiability Transfered Qut/ Divestments) - -

{Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment - -

{Liobilities Exfinguished on Setitement) - -

[Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -

iBenefit Paid From the Fund) - -

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.14) -

Change in Demographic Assumptions -

Actuarial {Gains}/Losses on Obligations - Due to {0.22} {0.04)

Change in Financial Assumptions )

Actuarial {Gains) /Losses on Obligations - Due to 0.21 0.72

Experience

Present Value of Benefit Obligafion at the End of the 5.25 385

T, Harlting
Chambars,
Nehry Nog¥,




Particulars For the year | For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
Morch, 2022 | March, 2021
Table Showing Chonge in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Fair Yalue of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period - -
Interest Income - -
Contibutions by the Employer - -
Expected Contibutions oy the Fmployees - -
Assets Transferred InfAcquisitions - -
[Assets Transferred Out/ Divesiments) - -
(Benefit Paid from the Fund) - -
{Assefs Distributed on Setflements) - -
Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Refurmn on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income - -
Fair Value of Plan Assefs at the End of the Period ~ -
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:
{Present Value of Benefit Obligation af the end of the {5.25) {3.85)
Perod)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - -
Funded Status [Surplus/ [Deficit)} i5.25) {3.85)
Net [Liabiliy}/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet {5.25] {3.85)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
for Cumrent Period:
Current Service Cost 1.28 0.91
Net Interest Cost 0.27 0.15
Past Service Cost - -
{Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -
{Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Setflements - -
Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Expenses Recognized 1.55 1.05
Expenses Recognized In the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) for Cumrent Period:
Actuarial (Gains}/Losses on Obligation For the Period {0.15) 0.67
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income - -
Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Net {Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in {0.15) 0.67
Ecﬂmce Sheet Reconclllation:
Opening Net Liability 385 2.13
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 1.58 1.05
Expenses Recognized in OCI {0.15) 0.67

Net Liability/ [Asset) Transfer In




Tumover

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 314 ended 31
March, 2022 March, 2021
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out - -
{Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -
[Employer's Contribution) - -
Nef Liability/ [Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 5.25 3485
Assumplions:
No of Aclive Members 116 4
Per Month Salary For Active Members 292 2.31
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 15 20
Obligation
Average Expected Future Service 15 22
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO} 525 385
Rate of Discounting 7.27% 6.95%
Rate of Sdlary Increase 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Tumnover 5.00% 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Indicin
Assured Lives | Assured Lives
Mortaility Moriality
12004-08) (2006-08)
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year {12 Months) - -
Maturlty Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the
Employer:
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the
Date of Reporting
15t Foliowing Year 0.17 0.04
2nd Following Year 0.21 0.04
3rd Following Year 0.26 0.07
4th Following Year 0.30 0.09
5th Following Year 0.32 Q.lo
Sum of Years 670 10 1.66 0.6]
Sum of Years 11 & above 13.83 1594
Sensitivity Analysis:
Projected Benefit Obligation on Cument Assumptions 5.25 3.85
Delia Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {0.60) f0.62)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discouniing 0.73 0.79
Deltq Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.65 0.75
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increcse {0.58) [0.63)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee (0.02) {0.05)
Tumover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 0.02

005

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumplions occuring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding alt other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the
actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumpfions may be corelated.




(o]

Eurthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of
the projected benefit obligation has been calcutated using the projected uni
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method
as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the
balance sheet.

Leave Encashment (unfunded):

The employees of the company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy
of the company. The fiability on aecount of accumulated leave as on last day
of the accounting year is recognised [net of ihe fair value of plan assets as at
the balance sheet date] ai present value of the defined obligation at the
balance sheet date based on the acluarial valuation camied out by an

independent actuary using projected unit credit method,

{All amounts are in Milion indian Rupees)

Pardiculars

For the year
ended 319
March, 2022

For the year
ended 313t
March, 2021

Table Showing Change In the Present Valve of
Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of
the Period

3.27

1.87

Interest Cost

0.23

0.13

Current Service Cost

0.82

0.58

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During
the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incured During the
Pefiod

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divesiments)

{Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

[Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)

(Benefit Paid Direcily by the Employer)

{Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains}/Losses on Cbligations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumplions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Financial Assumptions

[0.05)

Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due o
Experience

0.81

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the
Period

3.27

Change In the falr value of plan assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning. of the Period

interest Income

Contributions by the Employer

Expecied Contributions by the Employees

Assets Transferred InfAcquisitions

jAssets Transfemed Out/ Divestments)

{Benefit Paid from the Fund)




Particulars

For the year
ended 314
March, 2022

For the year
ended 31
March, 2021

(Assets Distriouted on Settlements)

Effects of Asset Ceiling

The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Returmn on Plan Assets. Excluding Interest iIncome

Fair Yalue of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

[Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
Period)

[4.51)

{3.27)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

Funded Stajus {Surplus/ {Deficit})

[4.51)

3.27)

Unrecognized Pasi Service Cost at the end of the
Pericd

Net tiability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheel

[2.51)

(3.27)

Expenses / [Incomes] recognised in the Statement of
Profit & Loss:

Current Service Cost

082

0.58

Net Interest Cost

0.23

013

Actuarial (Gains}/Losses

0.43

0.74

Paost Service Cost - Non-Vested Benelit Recognized
During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During
the Pericd

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

{Gains)/Losses on Curtaiiments & Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Change in Asset Cedling

1.47

1.47

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liakility

3.27

V.87

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

1.47

1.47

Net Liability/ (Asset} Transfer In

Net {Liability] /Asset Transfer Out

(0.22)

[0.07)

(Employer's Contribution])

Net Liability/ (Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

4.51

327

Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet
date:

Expected Retum on Plan Assets

Rote of Discounting #

7.27%

6.95%

Rate of Salary Increase $

7.00%

7.00%

Rate of Employee Tumnover

5.00%

2.00%

1 No of Active Members

16

94

Per Month Salary For Active Members

272

231

Projected Benefit Obligotion (PBO)

4.51

3.27

Prescribed Contrioution For Next Year (12 Months)

#The rate of discount is considered based on morket yield on Govemment Bonds having curency
& ternis in consistence with the currency & terms of the post-employment beneiit obligations.




§ The estimates of future salory incredses are considered in actuarial valyation, taking into account
inflation, seniority, promation & otherrelevant factors such as supply & demand in the employment

rnarket.

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities pursuant to Para B14 of Ind AS 112:

Following is the disclosure relating to Joint Conirol entities:

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Ni-Hon
Farm Gas ;T;:,:;Ts Cylinders

Particulars P_rlvate Private Private

Limited Limited Limited
Year 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22
Country of Incorporation India thdia Indicl
% of ownership inferest 50% 50% 50%
Curent Assels 377.22 114,55 79.45
Non Current Assets 371.72 90.12 7.48
Cumrent Liabilities 181.43 104.10 8.83
Non Current Liabilifies 240.57 89.77 75.30
Income 623.36 136.57 38.33
Profit/{Loss} for the year 29593 {8.00) 1.82
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 29593 (8.00) 1.82
Centingent Liabilities - - -
64.80 - -

Capital Commitments

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Ni-Hon

articulars Private : Private

Limited Private Limited

Limited Imite

Year 2020-21 2020-21 -
Couniry of Incorporation India Indic -
% of ownership interest 50% 50% -
Cument Assets 56.69 48.31 -
Non Cumrent Assets 60.24 85.33 -
Current Liabilifies 343 26.27 -
Non Curent Liabilities - - -
Income - - -
Profit/{Loss) for the year {1.81) {(1.06] -
Cther Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income - - -
Contingent Liabilifies - - -
Capital Commitments 80.80 1.48 -




33.

Related Party Disclosures:

[a) Name of the Relgied party & Nature of the Related Party Relationship:

$r. No,

Nature

Name of the Person/Entity

Holding Company

{i) Cadila Pharmaceuticals Litd

Joint Control entities

(il Farm Gas Private Limited
(i} Venuka Polymers Private Limited
{iii) Ni-Hen Cylinders Private Limited

iif.

Associate Enterprise

(i} Enertech Distribution
Management Pvt Lid

Fellow Subsidiary Company

{i) Cosil Hedith Products Limited

Enterprises Significantly Influenced
by Directors or their relalives or Key
Management Personnel

(i) IRM PvtLid

(i} Sanguine Management Services
Pvt Lid

(i) IRM Trust

{iv) Mauktika Ventures LLP

(vIN M Sadguru  Water
Development Foundation

[vi) Aspire Disruptive Skill Foundation

{vii) Indrashit Kaka Ba & Kala Budh
Public Charitable Trust

(viil} __ Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvi Lid

and

vi.

Key Management Personnel

(i)  Mr, Maheswar Sahu (Chairman)
{ij Dr. Rajiv . Modi (Director)
i)  Mr. Amitabha Banerjee

(iv)

(vi)

{vii)

(Director)
Mr, Vinod Jain (Director]

(v] Mr. Badi Mahapatra {Director)
Mr, Karan Kaushal [CEOQ)

Mr. Harshal Anjaria {CFO)

(b) Transactions with related parfies [Amt. in Rs.):

{viii) Ms. Shikha Jain {CS)

{All amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

sr. Nature of | Name of the Related | Forthe year | Forthe year
No. Transaction Party 2021-22 2020-21
Cadila
Pharmaceuticals Ltd 13.29 130
IRM Trust 66.78 3an
Venuka Polymers Pvt (0.04)
For Goods Lid {0.04)
i Procured/Services | Enertech Fuel 42.76
Availed/(Provided) | Solufions Pvt Lid ) ’
Casil Health Products . 011
Ltd '
Mauktia Ventures LLP 6.73 -
IRM Pvi Lid 0.31 Q.15
Cadila
. 3.72 24.64
subscription of Pharmaceuticals Ltd
i Equity Shares (inci. | IRM Trust 1.39 9.18
T | securifies Enertech Distribution
premium) Management Pvi Lid 4.64 7.74
Maheswar Sahu 558 -




s1. No Nature of | Name of the Related | Forthe year | Forthe year
T | Transaction Party 2021-22 2020-21
Cadila
Pharmaceuticals Lid (0.66] (0.04)
Maheswar Sahu 0.22 0.01
t/%nuko Polymers Pvi (2001} (3.63)
i Reimbursement -
: of Expenses Moukilkg Ventures LLP {0.21) (0.00)
Farm Gas Pvt Lid (97.14) {(1.71)
Ni Hon Cytenders Pvt )
Ltd {0.02}
IRM Trust - (0.27)
Subscription of ,
, Cadila
v, Preference . - 34.14
Shares Pharmaceuticals Ltd
v Director Sitting mMaheswar Sahu 0.88 0.68
' Fees Badri Mahapatra 0.36 0.20
vi. Monqgeria! Maheswar Sahu 4.58 4.64
Remuneration
Shree Scraswati
Education Sansthan - 2.00
{Indrashil University}
N M Sadgura Water
Corporcﬂe Social and Deveiopmeni 0.50 0.30
vii. | Responsibility Foundation
Expense Aspire Disruptive Skill 590 ~
Foundation '
Indrashil Kaka Bao &
Kala Budh Public 3.33 -
Charitable Trust -
. Aspire Disruptive Skill ' _
viif. Donaticn Foundation 0,20
x |LoanGiven | hhion Cinders Y 74.90 ;
[RM Pvt Lid 0.07 0.02
il H duct
) Outstanding ﬁgﬂ edlth Products . 0.03
Payables IRM Trust 11.02 -
Mavuktika Yentures LLP 0.42 -
Ni Hon Cylinders Pvt
Lid 0.02 ]
t/tznuku Polymers Pvt 2571 13.70
xi Outstanding .
| Receivables Cadila i 0.05
Pharmaceuticals Lid a
Maulktika Ventures LLP - 0.04
Farm Gas Pvt Litd §3.51 1.71




34.

35.

Earnings Per Share:

fi)

i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

{Al amounts are in_Mition Indian Rupees)

st Particulars UOM | Forthe year For the year
No. 2021-22 2020-21
Basic EPS
d | Profit after tax attributable to Rs. 1,135.75 351.08
Equity Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average Nos. 29.18 28.16

number of Equity shares
outstanding dwing the vear

c | Value of equity share Rs. 38.92 12.47
Diluted EPS

a | Profit after tax athibutable to Rs. 1,135.75 351.08
Equity Sharenhclders

b | Basic & weighted average Nos, 29.18 28.14

number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year

c | Value of equity share Rs. 38.92 12,47

Contingent Liabllities & Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for):

Commitments _
{All amounts ore in Milion Indian
Rupees)
Sr. No. | Particutars For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
! Estimated amount of contracis | 1084.05 49919
remaining to be executed on
capital account & not provided for
{Net of gdvance)
T2 Income Tax Liability for AY 18-19- 0.05 -
Rectification filed pending
resolution

The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee for Loan taken by its Joint control
Entities as per below information-

a. Corporale Guaraniee issued in favour of Banks fowards Loan taken by Farm Gas
Private Limited amouniing to Rs. 335.40 million.

b. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Bank fowards Loan taken by Venuka
Polymers Private Limited amounting to Rs. 171.60 million.

The Company has executed mid term supply contracts for purchase of RLNG having
take or pay(ToP) obligations, The volume commitied under such contract which is liable
to TOP is 6213 mmbtu/day. The Company is not foreseeing ToP liability under such
contract :

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Diu (UT of Diu & Daman) & Git Somnath District
(Gujaral), the Company has submiited Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 crores
to PNGRB.

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Pefroleum & Natural Gas Regutatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Banaskantha Distict {Gujarat) and Fatehgarh
Sahib District (Punjab), the Company has submiited Performance Bank Guarantee of
Rs. 10012 crores to PNGRB,




(vi) Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
[PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli District (Tamil
Nadu), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 33 crores to
PNGRB. '

36. The Company has taken limits for issuance of Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG}) in
favor of PNGRB which is secured Qs under-

a. First Charge on movable and immovable assets (both present and future) relating
o the specific projects on pari passu basis.

b. First charge on cumrent assets {incl. cash flows, receivables, etc), both present and
future, of the specific projects on pari passu basis.

37. Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
commitiee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities of the Company are
generally been canied out by making payment contribution fo eligible Trusts, The Trusts
camy out the CSR activities as specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 on
behalf of the Company.

{All omounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Sr. Particulars As ot March | As at March
No 31, 2022 31, 2021

e Amount required to be spent during the year 4.00 3.09
b Amount of opening unspent CSR expenses - -
spent duing the year

c | Amount approved by the Board 1o be spent 6.03 3.40
during the year

d Amount speni_ during the year 46,03 3.40
i. Construction/Acquisition of any assets - -

ii.On purposes other than (i) above 4.03 3.40

Details related fo spent/unspent obligations
a. Contribution to Public Trust - 2.00

b. Contribution to Charitable Trust 403 1.40
<. Unspent Armount - -

38. Segment Information

a. Description of segments and principal activities: The Company has a single operating
segrment that is "Sale of Natural Gas™. Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment
results, segment assets & segment liobilities are reflected in the financial statements
themselves as at & for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

b. Entity wide disclosures

i. Information_about products and services: The Company is in a single line of
business of *Sale of Natural Gas”,

i. Geogaraphical lnformation: The company operates presently in the business of city
gas distribution in India. Accordingly, revenue from customers eamed and non-
current asset are located, in India.,

ii.  Information about major customers: In the current year, revenue from none of the
external custormer individually accounted for more than ten percent of the
revenue.




39.

40.

41.

42,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The company has registered charge with ROC within statufory fime period. There has been no
salisfaction of charge filed with ROC.

Details of Benami Property held

The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence no proceedings initiated or pending
against the company under the scid Act and Rules.

Loans and advances granted to specified person

Except as stated in the notes to accounts and financial statement, there are no other loans or
advances granied o specified persons namely promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties.

The Company has taken Land, Building and Plant & Machinery on Lease for the period of more
than 12 Months, The Company has taken other Buildings also on lease for the period of 12
months or less. For which the company applies the “Shori-term leases” recognition
exempilions.

Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

(a) Changes in the carrying value of ight of use assets

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars Marcas;llt As a;‘M ;{;l‘]
2022 ’

| Balance at the beginning of the year - 5623 4357
Additions 65.75 17.39
Deletions - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 699 4.60
Payment of lease liabilities 11.90 : 2.33
Balance at the end of the year | 117.07 56,23

(b) Movement of Lease Liabilities

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars As u;;“ g{r];lzm Murcts:s?t

' 2021

Balonce at the beginning of the year 71456 &2.74
Additions 85.75 17.39
Deletions -
Amortisation 7.78 8.66
Balance at the end of the year 129,43 71.47




43

44,

45,

46,

{c) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

{A) amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

e
Less than one year 8.85 6.22
One to five years 48.69 873
More than five years 5%9.53 41.28
Total 117.07 54.23

[d) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss account during the year

Al amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees|

For the year | Forthe year

o
2022 2021

Amortisation expense of right of use assets 7.79 8.6
Interest Expense on Lease liabilities 6.99 4.60
Expense related to short term leases 4.58 V.79
Total 19.38 15.05

{e) Amount recognized in statement of Cash Flow

{Afl amounis are in Milion Indian Rupees)

Forthe year | Forthe year.

ending on ending on

Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021

Total Cash flow for lease 11.90 2.33
Total 11.90 2.33

Ulilisation of borrowed funds, share premium and other funds

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding
that the Company would directly or indirectly lend orinvest in other person or enfity identified
in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the funding party {ultimate beneficiary) or
provided any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimalte beneficiary.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause [87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Resitiction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The company has not fraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

Undisclosed Income
There is no transaction, which has not been recorded in books of accounts, that has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961,




47. Relationship with struck off companies

The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 540 of Companies Act. 1956

48. Wilful Defaulter

The company is not declared as wilful defaublter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender,

4%, Financial-Ralios

Ratio Numerator | Denominator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasonsfor%
22 21 in Ratio change
(%) (Requlred if
. change is >
25%)
Cunrent Ratio Cumrent Cumrent 1.81 1.75 3% | -
Assels Liabilities
Debi-Equity *Total Debt | *Total Equity 023 1,43 -56% | Total equity of
Ratio the company
has increased
due to
improved
profifability.
Debt Service Eamings # Debt Service 7.26 513 42% | -
Coverage Ratio | available
for debt
service
Return on Equity | Net Profit Average 63% 36% 74% | Due 1o increase
Ratio less Shareholder's in  sales, the
Dividend Equity profitability has
' increased
Inventory Sales Averdge | 431061 279.46 54% | The Company's
turnover ratio ' Inventory : operations  has
grown
significantly
leading to

higher revenues
and inventory
levels

compared to
preceding year

Trade Net Credit Average 3222 27.51 17% | -

Receivables Sales Accounts

tumover ratio Receivable

Trade payables MNet Credit | Average Trade 14.18 8.93 59% | The Company's

turmnover ratio Purchases Payables operations  has
grown leading
to higher
purchases and
creditor  levels
compared  fo
preceding yeadr
as better
payment  terms
are negotialed
with the
vendors.

Net capital Net Sales Working 8.65 8.55 1% -

turnover rafio Capital




Ratio Numerator | Denomindator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasonsfor %
22 21 in Ratio change
(%) (Requlired if
change is >
25%)

Net profit ratio Nef Profit Sales 1% 7% 25% | Company has
eamed higher
margins on gas
trarcing and also
volume has
grown
compared to
last year.

Return on Earmnings Capital 31.67% | 11.82% 168% | EBITDA has

Capital before Employed increcsed  due

employed interest and to higher

taxes : marging and
increased sales
volume,

Retum on Average Rate of Return 2.48% | 6.92% -64% | Chaonge due MTM

investment movement linked

{Mutual Fund) to NAV of

respeciive muiual
fundl.

*Total debf = Bomowings from banks + Liability component of Preference Shares + Lease liabilities
$ Total equily = Equity Share Capital + Other Equily
# Debit Service = Interest and Finance charges + Lease Payments + Principal repayment of bank borrowings

Financial ratios are calculated considering the IND AS accounting freaiment and the
formulas of the ratios are as per the guidance note of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india, not as per the industry acceptable practices.

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Associates For & on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
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